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The following notes are reprinted from the pamphlet issued in
the bicentenary year of the Middleton Colliery Railway (1958) by
kind permission of Mr, D. Garnett, with additional notes by York
Railway Museumi the Leeds University Union Railway Society & the
Middleton Hailway Trust.

The History of the Kiddleton Colliery Railway can be considered
conveniently in five partsi™

The Pre-locomotive era ~ up to 1u08
The Blenkinsop era - 1808 to 1831
The Decline of fortune - 1831 to l86?_
Early Company Days - 1862 to 1903
The Twentieth Century « Abandonment

THE PRE-LOCOMOTIV3 ERA - UP TO 1808
Jf:;J*|.̂*;*_Ĉ

In 16469 Sir Ferdinande Leigh was the owner of a 7colc
Middleton. This is one of the earliest records so far traced and suggests
something more advanced than the bell pits which, had sufficed from the
beginning of time to win coal from a depth of but a few yards. Sir
Ferdinande's was probably a ?day level' or substantially horizontal adit
driven into an outcrop.

In 16699 Frances Conyers of Kiddle ton was issuing a half penny
token "for the use of the Cole tits'* Conyers Spring., a copse near Day Hole
jjlnd but at a slightly lower level, -may well be the site of these workings.

Ralph Brandling, of the Tyneside coal owning family of Felling,
County Durham, married the Leigh heiress in 1697 thereby in due course
amalgamating the fortunes of the two families and bringing Tyneside methods
to Middletono By 1717 it is recorded that he was the owner of !A Wrought
Colliery or Coal Mine with a Water Engine and Smithyv at Middleton.

The Brandlings continued to make their principal home at Felling
and later at Gosforth, so they employed an Agent at Middleton, By 175^,
."Richard Humble was so installed and playod a big part in developing the
estate and coal workings in competition with those of the Fentons, around
Hothwell and elsewhereo At this time Fenton had better access to Leeds
and the river side for marketing his coal, as the Middle ton coals had to
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negotiate narrow lanes or bridle paths0 Doubtless under Humble's advice,
Charles Brandling, who had succeeded to the Estates in 17^9? acquired
land by the river and elsewhere which gave him a route over his own land
and that of friendly neighbours to the river except for a length where,
in 1755s he obtained leave to construct a wooden wagon-way for 960 feet
on Woodhouse Hill Lane„ Thus it appears that Brandling's river staithes,
just upstream of where the Great Northern Railway bridge now stands,
antedated the wagon-way to Leeds by tî o years o

The first record of attempts to build a wagon-way towards Leeds
was in 1757 but not until January, 1758 * was the first agreement signed
between Charles Brandling and a landowner for the laying of a wagon-way
for supplying Leedso Further agreements were signed between March, 1758,
and December, 1759? but Brandling evidently became aware of a possible
snag in these agreements and sought their ratification by a Private Bill
presented to Parliamento He obtained his Act (31 Geo. 2, c.xxii) on 9th
June, 1758o It was the first Act of Parliament for the construction of a
railway and was entitled;;

An Act for Establishing Agreements made 'between Charles Brandling,
Esq, and other persons, proprietors of Lands, for laying down a
Waggon-way, in order for the better supplying the Town and Neighbour-
hood of Leeds, in the County of York, with coalso

The Act confirmed Brandling's agreements and gave him his way-
leaves for as long as he continued to supply not less than 2̂ -,000 tons of
coal a year at 50*3 d per ton. (The actual figures are quoted at pence per
corfe but have been converted to current terms*) Delivery was to be effec-
ted at fa certain field or open space called Casson Close near the Great
Bridge at Leeds1.

The Act refers to fa waggon-way (such as is used for and about
the coal works and coal mines in the Counties of Durham and Northumberland)!.
These usually consisted of oak rails with a renewable strip of beech on
the upper surface. They wore cross-sleepererl at about throe foot pitch ,
the sleepers being covered with gravel or cinders to protect them from the
Horces1 feetc Wheels were usually of beech, small in diameter and broad,
with a circular metal plate fastened to the inner face by way of a flange.

The wagon-way gave Brandling an immediate advantage over his
competitors in the matter of reduced transport costs for coals brought to
Leeds and the output of the Middle-ton Collieries doubled within a decade.

The second Act of Parliament (19 Goo. 3, c.xi) was obtained by
Charles Brandling in 1779* This empowered him to increase the price of
coal to 58-3 d per ton, but ho undertook to deliver twice the quantity
previously supplied. The people of Leeds agreed to this arrangement and
increase because the previous quota of coal at a specified price was in-
sufficient to meet demands and whan it was exhausted, perhaps well before
the winter, coals could, bo sold at any price they would fetch. Brandling
was also required to supply the new quota in equal quarterly instalments,
but was enabled to soil part of the consignment 'at any convenient place
or places near or adjoining to the said waggon-way within the said borough



of Leeds . o . 1 There are records of sales on Hunslet Moor from 1771, which
may have been unlawful- The Act legalised such sales and may have pres-
aged the lawful supply to premises on the route, such as the Leeds Pottery,
in which Mr * Humble was a partner« By the terms of this Act, Brandling
was to lose the rights for his wagon-way if lie should ypermit or suffer
any coals which shall be dug or got out of any mine or seam of coal lying
within or under any lands or grounds in the said townships of Beeston or
Kunslet or either of them to be brought to the said reposito^ or coal
yard for sale there . . * ? A scalv, of charges for cartage from Casson Close
to various parts of the borough was also laid down.

Teal's map of Middleton in 1786 is most revealing as to the
extent of the wagon-ways at the time. Many of them survive on modern maps
as footpaths. The 'Fire Engine9 mentioned, thereon and located at Grid
reference SE 31^52895 is probably the steam pumping engine which is known
to have been supplied in 1779/80 to the designs of John Smo-aton the engi-
neer of Austhorpe^ near Leeds, better known for his Eddystone Lighthouse»
Mr, Smeaton received payment in 17oO for his design and instruction as to
erection.

Despite the provisions of the Act ten years earlier, Brandling,
hitherto a partner in the Booston New Colliery (location uncertain),,
acquired the rights of his retiring partner in 1789 and connected the
colliery with his wagon-way, offering Beoston coal for sale at Leeds
staitheo No map or plan of any branch to Beeston has been traced, howevero

were
being purchased in quantity in 1790, These may have- been for use under-
ground but it seems likely that they were for surfacing the wagon-ways
above ground where individual wagons contained 2^: tons of coalc

The third. Act (33 Quo. 3, c.lxxxvi) dated 30th April, 1793. makes
reference to 'very great Expense in making fresh Winnings in the said Coal
Working, and in making additional Waggon Ways therefrom'* This probably
refers to the first stage of the development of mining in the area now
largely covered by the Middle-ton housing estate, Thu early pits seem to
have been spread on both sides of Town Street, lying within a hundred, yards
thereof o The surviving incline was built at this period.

In 1793 v Smeaton's pumping engine was replaced by
one made by Boulton & Watt and Smeaton's 72 inch engine was
a new 5 but unidentified ? location.

eThe new Act authorised an increase in price of 10 d to 6cj°3d p
ton and this was apparently conceded by the people of Leeds under a threat
to discontinue the supply and allow the wayleavos to lapse. Since Brand-
ling's coal was both good and cheaper than, that from other and less favour
ably placed, collieries, the price increase :was conceded but the supply was
to be reserved for thu people of Leeds, and there was to be a daily quota
six days a week. The Act legalised the sale of Boeston or Hunslet coal,
but only when Middle ton coal was not available for good and sufficient
reasons c. Authority for sale of a portion of the daily quota at any place
on route was also given o There were also extensive provisions against
various rackets and unfair trading practices by all cone erne do
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The last Act (k-J> Geo 3? c.xii), which received the 'Royal Assent
on 2^-th March, 1603? mentions Charles Brandling as the former owner and
Charles John Brandling as the present owner... It refers again to the vgreat
expense in making fresh winnings in the said.Coal Works and in making and
laying additional Waggon Ways therefrom5* This Act authorised the raising
of the price of coal to 83°^-d per ton, delivered to 'the said repository
at Casson Close aforesaid, .or at an.y other place near thereto, 'to be used
as a repository for Coals instead thereof*. This clearly indicated the
intention to cut back the Leeds end. of the line and to build new staithes
athwart the site of Great Wilson Street, not then made:. Net lam and. Francis
Giles? map of 1815 shows 'Brandling's old Coal Staithes' on the site occu-
pied from about 182^1- by the South Market, and JNew Coal Staithes1 slightly

but seems likely to be before 1o073 in which year the sale of coal at the
river staithes, whilst that at the Leeds staithes reached a record 67^000
tons, soon to be eclipsed when steam traction was introduced*

A detailed Valuation of the Middlcton Colliery was made early in
1808 by To Fenwick & J. Watson, dated 28th January. This showed that the
average winning over the past seven years had been 35?000 wagons of 5̂ cwt„,
or 78,750 tons, of which an average of 8,464 tons had been for the workmen
and. engines0 The Valuation refers to the two pumping engines, but no wincU

At the date of the Valuation, there were 4il: miles of wagon-ways,
including main-way and bye-way, one half being then of iron*, There were
staithes at Leeds and Eunsletc The river staithes wore
!Hunslet? and oven though the .last records of sales there
1807V "the evidence is against the existence of.staithes on Kunslet Moor,
There is an interesting reference to !2. machines on the inclined plane7
(singular), which were valued, at £120, having cost <-Sl'i-5 when new. This
incline would be the Old Aun incline from Belle Isle to Eunslet Carr,

THE BLSMKINSOP ERA ~ 1808 to 1831
J+*+M€̂

John Blonkinsop, born in 1793? 'near Leeds1, became agent to
Charles John Brandling at Middleton in 18()8, probably after spending some
time at Brandling?s Tyneside collieries,

Stimulated by the over increasing costs of horses and fodder,
owing to the demands of the.Napoleonic Wars, Blonkinsop investigated other
possible alternatives, and. doubtless because the adequate adhesion of a
smooth iron, wheel on a smooth iron rail had not then been proved in regular
usage; but possibly also with a blind, faith that it might bo possible thereby
to negotiate the mocL-st inclir-.,, with empty wagons, Blenkinsop devised his
rack rail method of traction, for which he secured Patent No, 3-~>L31 on 10th
April, l8l1o The firm of.Fenton, Murray and Wood, of noarby Eolbeck, were
entrusted, with the design of. a steam locomotive using Blenkinsopfs patent 0

Fenton, Murray and. Wood was formed in 1795? and the circular build-
ing from which the works came-'-to be known as the Round Foundry, was erected
in 1800.
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Matthew Murrayv born in Newcastle~on~Tyne in 1765 and in due
course apprenticed to blacksmithing and rnillwrighting, migrated to Stockton-
on-Tces. Trade declining,' he walked to Leeds in 1?§9 .̂nci found work with
John Marshall, a maker of flax spinning machinery* Here he met David Wood
and they hatched their plans for setting up in business together. Finance
for the business was provided by James Fenton* Wood's first interest was
the design and making of machinery whilst Murray developed steam engines,
stationary and otherwise*

Murray's first locomotive must have been substantially complete
before the end of 1811 as plaques were made at the Leeds Pottery which
depict a locomotive and bearing that date,, It is possible that the plaques
were back-dated, though that would seem pointless,

A very full account of the first practical test, on 24th June, 1812,
appears in the Leeds Mercury of 2?th June, 1812«, The issue for 18th July,
l8l2v carries a minute wood-cut illustration, surely the first newspaper
illustration of a steam locomotiveV

Apart from incorporating Blenkinsop?s rack patent, the locomotive
was unique in having two cylinders. Many and varied have been the descrip-
tions thereof but few, alas, bearing any stamp of authority. C. F, Dendy
Marshall reviewed all known accounts and his findings were published post-
humously in ??A History of Railway Locomotives down to the year 1o31H* Five
or six locomotives were built to these general designs, but each succeeding
one might incorporate variations and artists were neither as scrupulous nor
as able as the camera upon which so many later records depend. It seems
fairly certain that the earlier locomotives had a cast iron boiler of oval
section - about 37n x 32n and 9̂  ft, long, made in two halves bolted, together
and having a single flue l4-n in diameter, passing through to a tall chimney
of reduced diameter. Tv/o cylinders of 8H diameter by 24n stroke were sunk
into the boiler for half their length. They exhausted into the atmosphere,
though a silencer was added later„ Steam was controlled by two plug cocks,
coupled together, and was distributed by larger 4-way plug cocks which wore
oscillated through about 60 degrees„ The rack wheel was on the left side
only 5 despite pictures and descriptions to the contrary,-, Hurray, as an eng-
ineer 3 did not like this lopsided arrangement* He probably never ceased to
advocate twin rack rails, since central racks would interfere with the use
of horses for shunting. The locomotive had two spring-loaded safety valves
but it is not now certain whether it originally had a feed pump which proved
unsatisfactory and was discarded, or whether this was a later innovation*
The latter seems more likely though Dendy Marshall was not so convinced, and
the Kirkstall Abbey Museum model of SALAMANCA, built in 1928 after careful
research by the late E. Kilburn Scott, has been given a feed pump0 The only
known reference to the boiler pressure gives this as 55 Ibso fon every
cubic (sic) inch1. The price has been variously quoted at £350 and: £̂ 00,
and included a Royalty of £30 paid to a W. ¥est, the owner of the Trevithick
Patent ' f or the use of the high pressure steam7.

Blenkinsop is reported to have stated that the engine weighed 5
tons and did the work of 16 horses. It drew 27 wagons representing a load of
94 tons at 3̂ " miles per hour on the level or 15 tons up a gradient of 1 in
18, It could travel at 10 m.p0h. when lightly loaded o The consumption of
coal was 21*3 Ibso per train mile, and each pound of coal evaporated 6°7 Ibs.



•of -water.* At that time, a horse cost £50 to buy and JJ55 per annum in upkeep,
exclusive of .the driver0

The reference to a gradient of 1 in 18 is interesting. Could it
be that the locomotive negotiated Belle Isle incline? William Strickland
in his :!Report on Canals, Railways, Roads and Other Subjects5 in 1826 gives
the plane as being 350 yards long and the gradient 'about half an inch to
the foot % or about 1 in 24c. He also gives the rise as kk feet. The first
edition Ordnance Survey 2.5V? plan of 1893 shows a bench mark of 112"^- feet
near the foot of the incline and one of 171*9 feet at the top* They are
about 1300 feet apart and can be assumed to be nearly enough the same dis-
tance above ground surface, thereby giving a gradient of about 1 in 21.
Certainly the locomotives did not regularly work the incline, and a self--
acting system with brake drum was installed.

The first ti\ro locomotives went into regular service on 12th August,
I8l2o It being H.E.H.'s birthday, one of them was called PRINCE REGENT and
the otter SALAMANCA after the victory thereat three weeks earlier« These
two. are presumed to have operated on the lower level, and there is consider-
able confusion both as to the number of additional engines supplied and their
names. The third engine to be made was sent to Wellington, Northumberland,
for use at a colliery owned by a man who partnered Brandling in another of
his colliery enterprises. It had been ordered by .Blenkinsop for Middle ton,
but he forewent it for -the time being« Whether it came back as.^the Willing-
ton locomotive1 or whether its"replacement was referred to as the 'Willington
Replacement7 is not now clear (vide Dendy Marshall supra).. It would be easy
enough for this to become 'Wellington1 with that name on everyone's, lips*
The prefix .'.Lord1 and later 'Marquisv would be natural if ;the name was
adopted officially, whilst the naming of a fourth engine-after Marquis :

Wellcsley, Wellington's illustrious brother, would scorn a .natural corollary.
The dates of appearance of those two additions arc giv^n as/l-th August • and
23rd November, 1813? respectively *• .^..••:••• : , v - - .

Blenkinsopys efforts to improve tiro colliery must have been highly
successful^ and in the year 1814 they achieved an all time record output of
slightly in excess of 100,000 tons in the year. That was the first year when
George Stephenson's 'Blucher1, the first successful flanged adhesion loco-
motive ^ was put to work at Killingworth Colliery«

One of the engines "blew up in.l8l8, killing the driver and scalding
a number of children* Nevertheless, collectively they outlived their crea-
tors- Giving evidence about, this explosion before a Committee of the House
of Commons, George Stephen-son said, 'The .driver had been in liquor and had
put a considerable load on the safety valve, BO that upon going forward the
engine blew up and the man was killed. But 9 1 he added, 'that if proper pre-
cautions had been used with that boiler, the accident would never have
happened„?

There- was a serious accident between 6 and 7 p.nu on 12th January,
1825, 2k men being killed by an explosion at .'.Gos-forth Coal Pit, three miles
from Leeds1, The explosion was caused by the removal of the top of a safety
lamp for which, in future, Blonkinsop proposed, to provide a- lock* The list
of killed in the Leeds Mercury for 15th January, 1o25, includes one boy of
five, two of eight, three of ton and, two of twelve y^ars of age 0
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Gosforth Coal Fit, doubtless named after Brandling's Northumber-
land home, was stated to be 80 yards in depth,; sunk at the end of a tunnel
1̂ 1-00 yards in length, because 'the estate did not belong to the owner of the
coal'. This may well have been the Day Hole located at Grid reference
SE 309288, near the later Broom Pit 0 At one time there were two shafts.
one called Gosforth and the other Woodstar, located close together at SE
312277. The surrounding land, bounded by Sharp Lane and Throstle Carr Beck
on the North, East and South, had belonged to a Mr0 Arniitage and no known
map shows any track leading to the site of these pits, which may have been
for ventilation only, the position being not inconsistent with a tunnel of
1400 yards to the Day Hole* The tunnel was said to be big enough to accom-
odate a horse and carts which pundits now interpret as pony and tram 2

Matthew Murray died on 20th February, 1826 5 at the age of 61. He
is buried in Holbeck Cemetery and his grave is marked by a cast iron monu-
ment, made as a labour of love by the men at the Round Foundry „ The grave
and monument have recently been restored to their original condition as a
memorial to Matthew Murray.

Murray's House, built about 1803 and officially called 'Holbeck
Lodge1 though shown, on early maps as 'Spring Field*, was popularly referred
to as 'Steam Hall f on account of its pioneer steam heating installation. It
used to stand in a triangle of railway lines at Holbeck, but was pulled down
in late 1959 to make way for the now junction outside Leeds City Station.

John Blenkinsop died on 22nd January, 1831, after a 'tedious ill-
ness7* He was barely ko rind lies buried at Rothwell*

THE DECLINE OF FORTUNE - 1831 to 1862

%̂%%̂ ^̂ %*4&̂rtW*1 *' *' # V**V #' #V *V *' #' #' &•;? ̂V̂ ;? :.;-? :;«' *' *' *' #' >!?*' **V -•? #' *' *

By 1o35? production had. dropped to about 75% °£ the peak figures
and the average- price per ton had. boon forced down by over-increasing com-
petition from now collieries in the surrounding neighbourhood and improved
transport ~ from 88*3 d in 1811/12 to 60'0d.

In 183^-9 another engine blew up ? and in the- same year the Estate
passed into the hands of Trustees who, with dwindling profits, were loath
to incur any avoidable expenditure either on replacement of locomotives or
the much needed, sinking of new pits. Steam, traction was abandoned completely
in 1o35 arid horse traction came into its own again, the price of fodder
having fallen sharply *

The precise date of building the incline from Belle Isle (not of
course the modern circus of that name) up to Middleton village cannot now
be traced . It afpears to have been in existence by 1o27 when two Prussian
mining engineers visited, the colliery, though it is not mentioned by Strick-
land whose report of 1826 includes a detailed draining of the lower incline*
Martin's map of 1831 is the earliest to show it, terminating at Venture Pit,
Grid reference SE 306282 0 Priestley also refers to it - tantalizingly
briefly - in his 'Historical Account of the Navigable Rivers, Canals and
Railways of Great Britain1, published in 1831 •



In 1 832 j there appears to have been a rail connection between
Fanny Pit (now Colliery Farm), New -Lane (reference SE 29862818) and the top
of the incline « The route it followed was along a -field boundary line to the
south side of Town Street, opposite the school where it turned parallel with
the road but remaining on the south side as far as the known crossing place
at the top of the incline. The twin hedges at Nova Scotia are a prominent
of all large scale maps, and bounded the wagon-way from the supposed engine
to the main wagon-way at Day Hole iCncU

The first editions 1" Ordnance Survey map of 1840 shows the line
extending to what appears to be the West Pit, which is known to have been
sunk to 116 yards in or before 1836. The first edition 611 Ordnance Survey
map of 18^8-51 shows the system in its complete form via 'Venter ? (sic) Pit
to the West Pit (reference BE 295277) with a tramway running from Henrietta
Pit (s:G 29812783) via Glasshouse Colliery (SE 299227V?) to Bleaohground
Engines, which the 1850 Estate map described as f Bleachground Pit ? . This
was situated at the junction of New Lane and Thorpe Lane, now respectively
Middleton Park Avenue (slightly re-aligned) and Midclloton Lane (reference
SE 29982705).

At the othr end of the line. Great Wilson Street was driven through
at some time between 1831 and 1839, necessitating cutting back the terminus
by about fifty yards and probably necessitating some staithe reconstruction c

Christ Church, Meadow Lane , was built only shortly before the well-
known picture drawn by N. Whitlock and engraved on steel by T. Owen appeared
in 1829° This picture, which shows one of the Blenkinsop engines in the
middle of a train of wagons on a viaduct with Christ Church in the background
has two curious errors of draughtsmanship. The inclination of the crosshoad
guide tie bars is impossible and a mill chimney, one of several in the back-
ground, has been swept round and incorporated in the locomotive in addition
to its own chimney-

Doubtless the Inck of Blenkinsop fs guiding hand and certainly the
failure to plough back sufficient of the dwindling profits., resulted in
decreasing efficiency, caused the Estate to bo increasingly embarrassed; a
large scale map was prepared in -1850, probably with a view to soiling up*
A further map was prepared in 1u53 ^ftd bears the title 'Brandling v Plurnmer1.
This shows the following pits- and no others: Day Hole Colliery, Henrietta
Coal Pit, West Pit, New Lane Colliery (i.e. Glasshouse) and Bleachground Pit «
The two latter wore connected by tramway to a main line which ran from West
Pit to Great Wilson Street along the original alignment now called 'Old Run
Road1. The Brandling Estates were advertised for sale on 19th and 20th Oct-
ober, 1o53, as a direct result of the Brandling v Plummcr Chancery proceed-
ings, but there is no record of a sale having taken place , or of any change
of ownership, before l862o

EARLY COMPANY DAYS - 1862 to 1903

and responsibilities of the wagon-way 0 The new owners,, Tetlcy & Company,
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. -niied into the iliddleton Estate and Colliery. Companya They set about the
te.sk of making the colliery profitable again and sunk the Broom Pit to a
deeper level than heretofore. They re-introduced steam traction, the first
locomotive- being built by Manning Wardie in 1866, of V 1n gauge and called
•Elenkinsop70 This was followed by 'Matthew Murray* in l86go

William Emsley, a solicitor of Leeds, wrote a booklet in 18?7
(Funs-let Moors The four acts of parliament) in which he sought to demonstrate
that the Company had no authority to run locomotives upon the unfenced line
across Hunslet Mooro He also declaimed against 7the new siding or branch
line which the Owners of the Collieries have lately made on
the purpose of forming a junction with, the Midland Railway{
ding to a little booklet with the imposing title '?The Commons Question: Report
of Chancery Proceedings in the Hunslet Moor Case, Friday, February 22nd, 1878,
with the affidavits filed on both sides: and an introduction by John de Mor-
gan v Commoner's Agent", the line was altered in 1or/5 to eliminate the lower
incline and fthe new siding or branch liney was put in before the re-align--
mont on to the present route* The k? 1 I ? gauge branch line 'for the purpose
of forming a junction with the Midland Railway* must have been legal subter-
fuge. The Company acquired seven eighths of the Manor of Hunslet in 1868
and the remaining eighth in 187^-0 They shortly afterwards laid the branch
line as far as the limits of the Moor5 apparently with no immediate prospect
of completing the connection until they could buy the land thence to the Mid-
land, or persuade the Midland to obtain powers to do so. Meanwhile, it
seemed as though they were not entirely happy about the extension on the Moor
and hoped to acquire rights of ancient usage by the time they had acquired
the remaining lancL

Meanwhile, a certain John de Morgan had set himself up to champion
the Commoners and, in the presence of a company estimated variously between
30 and -̂0 thousand, he solemnly lifted a rail of the branch on 8th December,
1o77^ though vno violent speeches were made nor were any acts of violence
committed.? Chancery proceedings wore duly instituted on 22nd February,
1878, and a hollow victory secured for the Colliery Company, The first
edition 25'? Ordnance Map of 1890 still shows the branch turning across the
Moor and terminating nowhere!

In 1881 the gauge was changed to V 84n and 'Matthew Murray9 was
returned to the makers for conversion to standard gauge, fBlonkinsop?
already having been scrapped. Two further standard gauge locomotives were
supplied by Manning Wardl^: 'Niger' in 1892 and. 'Blenkinsop No« 2' in 1881.

It is no more than a guess that the connection with the Midland
Railwayvs Kunslet Lane Goods Depot, via a level crossing in Kidacre Street
and reversal in the Gas Works, was put in at the time of the gauge conversion.,
It is shown on the 1889/90 Ordnance Survey plans.

Bacon's plan of Leeds, circa 1889, is interesting in that it shows
the new alignment of the colliery line, with the old alignment, is what is now
Old. Hun Road, dotted. Doubtless because of its usolcssnoss, the branch is not
showno According to the 1890 Ordnance Survey^ tho line was fenced except on
the Moor. The great iron fence, which separates the line from tho Moor now,
could only have been put up after a decisive victory over the pretentious
Commoners by the Colliery Company0 It would have clone credit to a wartime-
hush-hush factory, each of the ^normous gates at a road crossing bearing a
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fearsome cheval de friese «, Eow they survived the Second War scrap metal
drive 'when a simple wire and post fence was considered ad-equate for the fast
and frequent train route alongside, is beyond conjecture.:, Saxby and Farmer's
gate posts and mechanism bear the dates 1901 and 1903? .which may not have
been the first enclosure „ They have long been disused *

The Midland connection was completed in time for inclusion in the
1u95 Handbook of Stations but by that date there was already the connection
with the Midland Goods Station - former North Midland terminus - via the
level crossing in Ki'dacrc Street 0

There had been various sidings from the Colliery- line at its
northern, end before the gauge conversion and two short ones arc shown on the
50n Ordnance plans of Leeds of 1850, A passing loop is also shown between
Moor' Road and Hillidge Place.

In 1893, the • Hunslot Hallway Company was incorporated to build the
line from, the Great Northern at Beeston, to Huns lot or more specifically to
Knowsthorpe | in Hunslot but across the river « This was taken over by the
Groat Northern under its Act of 189^ and duly opened on 3**d July, 1o99?
including a new connection with the Middleton Colliery line near New Pit,

By the time the Ordnance Survey explored the area in detail for the
. second time , - in 18QO, all the pits on the plateau had been closed and the line
cut back to a dead end at a spot nearly enough on the eastern boundary of the
Middleton housing estate. Coal was no longer brought down the incline but was
sent up with the aid of a steam winding engine > some of the buildings of which
survived until as recently as 196^-K There was a return sheave near the defunct
Venture Pit, whereby the coal wagons were cable hauled across Town Street to
staithes on the south side of the road. They could also.be dropped back into
the yard for supply to the engine „

THE TWENTIETH CENTURY
•* ' !•'• -^ i *. *,-:•. ̂V:;i -!ii ;.V!-i --'-I *' *i *< -M:^

Little of interest has emerged from the early part of the century.
The 1905 revision of the Ordnance maps snow the south end of the line cut
back a little further, to a site just short of the tramway, a spot it had
reached about 80 years previously, The coal staithes there were in us e
until 19^-8 as was the incline itself, and all traces south of Town Street
have but recently been effaced*

The steam winding engine was replaced by a humble electric motor
in about 1930 and the driving pinion moved to the opposite side of the winding
sheave* A turntable was installed as a last phase, to enable wagons of coal
to be turned into the yard for bagging,

*
Now, an explosives store has been built on the incline, near its

lower and, and the rails -have been roniovod; most of the sleepers remained
until quite recently though all have now disappeared.

.* Although this was the case at the time of writing, this store is no longer
~i n o TT i F, t. r » n r* r> .,in existence
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The upper incline is not the only feature of the enterprise to
suffer a reversal of traffic . A gas main, laid alongside the railway to
convey gas from the colliery coking ovens to the gas works near the northern
terminus is now used to supply gas from the gas works to the over-increasing
population in the Belle Isle area!

By arrangement with the- National Coal Board, John Fowler & Go, used
the colliery line for test purposes « When the northern section of the line
was closed in 1958, this arrangement terminated . « Subsequent to re-opening
by the preservation group, Hudswcll Clarke & Co. have used the line for
t e s t ing pur po s o s .

Of the development of the track and sidings around Broom Pit and
New Pit and the Coke Ovens, Brickworks, Clay Pits and Quarries thereabouts,
little factual record remains beyond that shown on the larger scale Ordnance
Survey maps and plans. Three commercial sidings on Hunslct Moor call for
notice in that access to and from the Midland line is obtained over the
Colliery line and the National Coal Board or their predecessors have dealt
with quite a vast amount of traffic for these 'customers7 over their line.

The oldest is that of Wagon Repairs Ltd-, now the Acme Engineering
Co., on the south side of the Midland connecting line o This dates back to
just before the first war and was in regular use until the 1958 closure. The
second serves three premises on the west side of the line which are reached
by a dead-end shunting neck connected with the main line by a north facing
curve o These were laid in during 1919/20 and serve;:- Clqyton, Son & Co, Ltd.,
who were presumably the first so connected as the crossing of the connection
with" the tramway is called 'Clayton's Crossing'; Robinson & Birdsell, Metal
Merchants and John King & Go.f Ironf oundors * All these are still intact
with the exception of the siding into the latter f irm ' s premises which was
lifted, in 196*f.~ The third connection to the Hunslct Foundry of Samuel
Beiiison & Son, Ltd., appeared officially at about the same time as the Clay-
ton connection, though it is difficult not to believe that there must have
been a connection many years before to the foundry which, whilst in other .
hands, cast the iron rails to Blcnkinsop's patent design o In those days, of
course, the line was on Old Run Road and through the recreation ground in
front of the premises o The modern connection to the new alignment was taken
out some years ago though it had not boon deleted from the 195& Handbook of
S tat ions o

One more siding appears on 1932 ^nd 19^9 Ordnance maps. It left'
the .main 'line immediately tortile north of the bridge carrying the Synnt".
Northern branch to Hunslet and proceeded for a quarter of a mile in a N.N.E.
direction upon substantially flat ground which was formerly a slag heap for
the New Pit. This is understood to have been a stack yarcL Like Conyers
Spring, it is now better contemplated upon the map than in reality 0

The visitor to the neighbourhood of Day Hole jzind and Conyers Spring
will find disappointment indeed. The little covert has become a public rubbish
dump and the spring is encumbered with the rejects of civilization at its low-
est. No trace remains of the Day Hole and the present dead-end shunting neck
terminates against virgin rotk, affronted by more of civilization's cast-
offs o



The Midclleton Light Railway is sometimes confused with the Colliery
line* Built by contractors for Leeds City Tramways under the Leeds Corpor-
ation Act of 1919, it was an electric tramway laid mainly on a reserved
track and built to serve the Middle ton housing estate. The first section
from Dewsbury Road, was laid in the highway along Moor Road until it reached
its reserved: track parallel and adjacent to the colliery line. From Clay-
ton's Crossing, both routes were together within the same fences as far as
the point of divergence just short of the Great Northern Railway bridge.
Here the tramway track struck off through the woods by Middleton Lodge, quite
away from any public road until it reached the Ring Road on the plateau, The
line was opened for passenger traffic to its original terminus at Middle ton
Park Circus on 12th November, 19259 and was extended to Lingwell Road just
short of the old Venture Pit on 28th November, 192?.

The existing tramway to Balm Road was extended to serve the Belle
Isle housing estate and tracks were laid along Bollo Isle Road to the Bollo
Isle Circus and opened to traffic on 22nd July, 19^-0, Under the Leeds Cor-
poration Light Railway Extension Order of 19^5* this was extended to Middleton
Road on 2^fth February, 19̂ 6. A further extension to the junction of Belle-
Isle Road and Middle ton Park Road was opened on 6th March, 19^9* &n.& tho
final length to the Middloton Light Railway at Lingwell Road was opened on
28th August, 19^-9o The whole of the tramway was abandoned on 28th March, 1959-

It is interesting to note that the original plans brought the tram-
way close alongside the Broom Pit and a physical connection of one furlong
-and one chain in length'was intended to be made with the Colliery Railway0
This plan antedates the Bellu Isle housing estate but it is interesting in
view of the fact that Leeds City Tramways used to handle mineral and goods
traffic over its system. A heavy mineral traffic between the Gipton Pit at
Harehills and the Leeds Firoday Company at Wortley survived until late in
1930,

The Middle ton Estate & Colliery Company is understood to have anti-
cipated, nationalization and to have separated its coal, fireclay arid other
interests in the- early days of the last war* Thus, it would be about this time
when the MIddleton Fireclay Company came into existence.

Traffic north of Moor Uopot, recently known as Whitaker's Staithes,
was discontinued on and from 13th September, 19̂ -8 > the bridge over Holmes St.
having been demolished by the National Coal Board on 1st February, 19^80 The
bridge was barely high enough to walk under, being of 7? 6?f headroom. However,
not all-traces of the bridge hav^ disappeared, as the capstans o.re still in
place on-each side of the road.

Most of the line, except that portion between Parkside Great Northern
Junction and Middle-ton Broom Pit ha.d been closed for two years when the Middled
ton Railway Preservation Society gave the section below the Whitaker's staithes
a new lease of life (see Appendix)o



TEE END OF THE LINE? 1958
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The Yorkshire Evening Post (Sato, 1-2-58) headlined the news
that nCoal Board is to abandon Pre-Stephenson Railway in Leeds'M This,
their report explained, was because of heavy maintenance costs« Renewal
of the track would prove too expensive for a Colliery that was losing
money and would probably be only marginally profitable after reconstruc-
tion* As most of the coal was transferred to lorries at Hurislet Moor,
it would reduce handling costs if road vehicles had access to the pit«
The land on which the railway stands was owned by the Middle ton Estate
Company and the lease was soon to expirec

The Post's competitor introduced a personal angle after a
Yorkshire Evening News reporter visited the line (Mon«, J~2-58). He
describes an alarming trip on the saddletank locomotive rrBlenkinsopn.
Dai Parry, Traffic Foreman, is quoted: nlf we had this railway at Black-
pool, we could make a fortune by offering rides at a bob-a-time on the
Big Dipper !'? The illustrated article continues with some facts and
figureso 'Eight hundred men employed at Broom Pit produce four thousand
tons of coal each week, all of which is despatched by rail,"

The proposal to build a road to the colliery evoked a storm of
protest from the nearby Belle Isle Estate, The danger of heavy lorries
passing on narrow residential roads was clearly undesirable* Their sugg-
estion that the railway should be converted into a road (though it would
have gladdened the hearts of the 'Railway Conve3?sion League*) was dec-
lared impracticable by Mr.. Saul (N.C.B, Area General Manager) on the
ground of expense o The opposition, which now had the support of the Cit;y
Council, if successful would threaten the existence of the Colliery,
endangering eight hundred jobs*

Whilst the battle between the Council and Coal Board continued,
railway enthusiasts and historians celebrated the bi-centenary of the line
A special passenger train ran in June 19.58? when "Blenkinsop'* hauled open
wagons from Moor Poacl Staithes to Broom Pit and back, and over the Balm
Road and Claytons (Dartmouth) branches. This loose-coupled train was9
for safety reasons, followed by a new Fowler prototype diesel shunter*
(Although the line was never dicseliscd, it has welcomed new motive power
from the nearby locomotive works for test and demonstration purposeso)
The more agile members of the tour walked the disused, incline to Middle-
ton (Town Street) whilst others discovered the delights of the Colliery
canteen «,

Seldom, if over before,, had the line carried official passengers
and those gliding past on the traiacars on the 'Light "Railway- watched in
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wonder the sooty3 coal-dust-covered cargo0

The tour was organised by the Railway Canal Historical Society
and the Railway Correspondence and Travel Society. At the same time an
exhibition depicting the history of the oldest railway in the world was
organised at the City Museum, Park Row.

The ?last rites5 had been performed *<>»>* the line was doornecU

The battle between Council and Coal Board, however, still raged
until eventually a compromise solution resulted in the retention of the
railway from Parks!de Junction on the G.N.E. Beeston Junction - Hunslet
East branch, to Broom Pit- Thomas W. Ward of Sheffield relaid these
tracks during the holiday fortnight in August 1959? thus avoiding dis-
ruption to railborne traffic« The layout in Broom Colliery Yard was
modified to allow B.R. locomotives to run round their trains. The rail
monopoly of tv/o centuries was now broken and. a percentage of total output
left by road. .The following figures illustrate this0

Year '

19W
1953
1960
1967

We ekly Average
Coal Production

(tons )

2 200
J> 400
3 ooo
5 4oo

% Conveyed by Rail

100
100
*f5
3

British Railways used a wide variety of tank locomotives to
move traffic which sometimes involved as many as three trains daily *
Ardsley based 'J501 cx-G .N.R „ 0--6-OT locos were later replaced by Thomp-
son's L.N.S.R, ?L19 2-6-4Ts- These in turn gave way to Stanier and Fair-
burn 2-6-4-Ts of L.M.S. origin. Upon the closure of Ardsley shed. Wake-
field became responsible for the turn, using similar locomotives until the
former L & Y depot in turn was closed, an,d Healey Mills based diesels
operated the line for the last few weeks*

PRESERVATION ERA 1960
%%*4?̂ VV̂ *4-̂* # #'* *.;•';;: 4J#'*.l&'4-'::«'#'#'*'*'#'#'#̂  #

In late 1959? Leeds University Union "Railway Society took steps
to preserve the World's Oldest Railwayo Under the Chairmanship of Dr*
R. F. Youell, the Middleton Railway Preservation Society was formed in
January -1960, The original aim was to form a transport museum which
would include tramcars as well as orthodox rail vehicleso As the last
Leeds tramcar ran on 7th November 1959 it was an urgent necessity for
the Society to provide a home for representative vehicles of the fleeto
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Unfortunately the original aim of running tramcars proved impracticable
as the cars would not run on railway-type tracks. Furthermore, vandalism
was rife 3 immediate provision of covered accomodation impossible and
regretfully, we eventually decided to concentrate our limited resources
on railway operation and dispose of our tram fleet to those who could
provide suitable covered accomodation„

Tramcars once on the Middle ton Railway

No,

1

6

160

202

513

.51?

601

1055

Operatorc

Leeds City Transport
(overhead rail derrick)

L. C „ T. (works c ar
ex-Hull)

L.C.T. 'Horsfield'

L.G.T. 'Eorsfield9

Sheffield 'Roberts'
Car

L.C.T. (ex-London
'Feltham')

L.C.T,: (single deck
railcar)

Glasgow C.T. (ex-Liv-
erpool 869)

Owner.

M.R.P.S,

M.R.P.S./
A J . Brown

Leeds City
Museums

J.Rothera

M.R.P.S.

M.R.P.S,

Merseyside Tram-
way Hi storico.l
Society

Disposal,

Leads Tramway His-
torical Society

L.T.H.S.

Scrap

Cullingworth

Scrap (trucks &
motors to L.T.H.S,)

Damaged by fire
(arson) & scrapped.

Tramway Museum
Society (at Liver-

pool - Edge Lane -
undergoing restora-
tion o

It was the railway side of the project which proved so success-
ful. Difficult and complicated negotiations took placec The line was
owned by the Middle ton Fireclay Company (which was undergoing liquida-
tion)* B.R. and Claytons were involved as prospective cusromers, the
City Engineer in the planning aspect <>

Progress was swift and on loth June 19̂ 0 the first train ran *
Hunslet Engine Company loaned pioneer diesel no. 1697? built in 1932 for
the L.M.S.Ro This was coupled to the double—decker tramcar-type Swansea
and Mumbles coach (for a full account see "'Old Eun;' for June 19&0)*

The mammoth task of transporting this historic vehicle was comm-
itted to the capable British Railways* The cost of road transport proved.
prohibitive and., as it was discovered, that the cars had arrived from
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'Brush? by. rail, the same procedure was adopted.. The car was 'sliced1
into upper and lower saloons and placed on two !bo-rails!<, It was
routed to Leeds from Swansea (Victoria) via the Central Wales line to
Shrewsbury ? Crewe, Stockport., Huddersfield and Leeds,,

The immaculate ex-works 169? hauled the lower deck - on its
own wheels - and the 'bo-rail'1" conveying^'the upper deck over the newly
relaid junction.at Balm Road on 18th June 1960; the VERY.FIRST standard
gauge preserved railway had commenced operation *.,«.

At k*kj pciiU on the 20th,, passenger operation commenced, offer-
ing "free rides at your own risk?? in connection with the University Rag*
In this demonstration service, the 106-seater vehicle carried 7 700 pass-
engers between Moor Road level crossing and Parkside overbridge in the
first week of operation

The next stage was the development of a regular service of
goods trainso In July, the ownership of the 3.ine passed to Claytons,
the Society being responsible for maintenance and operation0 To combine
easy movement with economy, the double track Moor Road - Balm Road .'section
was singled and the disused Acme sidings removed* A loop- at Balm Road
facilitated easy exchange of traffic with B.R, Much attention was nec-
essary to the' long-neglected track, The chairs "secured1 to rotting
sleepers were cosmopolitan in origin:- London and South Western Railway,
Midland Railway9 Great Northern Railway, South Eastern and Chatham,
L.N.E./R, and X.M.S.R. 0 . <> * . but the prize specimens are stamped Metro-
politan and L.N.S. Joint - a line but four miles long built in 1925-
Pending .relaying, tracks were made usable and on 1st September 1960
regular freight traffic commenced to Robinson and Birdsells (Scrap Metal
Merchants), Claytons traffic commencing on 1st November, A Ministry of
Transport Inspector of Railways visited the line and gave his approval*

The level of traffic has varied considerably from year to year
but an average of about 9-000- tons has been conveyed - which would other-
wise have aggravated road congestion in this busy industrial area. Scrap
metal, steel- girders and plates form the principal inward .traffic„ Scrap
and an occasional shipping contract of a gasholder go out.,

On 28th January 1961 the last train left Whitakers Staith, con-
veying passengers in open wagons0 The traffic' from Parkfield Metals for
which we had hoped never materialised and -the line across the Moor is now
used for wagon storage. Apart from relaying, the construction of a new
branch line into Claytons Moor End Works proved a real challenge to our
volunteer Permanent Way Gang - the branch opened in 196^-1-0 The old Midland
Railway Hand Crane arid former 3.W.8. Steam Crane proved invaluable in this
and other major track relaying operations.

The locomotive situation proved difficult in the early days,
With only the one vintage diesel every effort was made to keep the loco
in traffico In the summer of 1962 we were compelled to hire a B.R.
!Drewry7 0-6-0 shunter, no D2323 <> whilst the diesel was repairedo Our
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1 Sentinel1 L.N.Ii.R. 0-4-0 no. 5̂ - was also out of action at this time •
The work of repair and restoration with the meagre facilities at present
available proves difficult.

With the wider range of motive power now available; we can
always have a choice of usable locomotives. The Fowler and Hunslet
diesels are cheaper to run than steam power and more convenient for vol-
unteer crews who have no need to coal and water, light fires and remove
ashesc However, steam locomotives play an important part in operation
on Saturdays, the North Eastern Railway JY7 f i^orking the first in each
month during; the summer,, 'Matthew Murray' and the Sentinel on other
occasionso Substantial renovation remains necessary to put 'Swansea.5
into working order; the difficulties of obtaining spare parts was parti-
ally solved by the purchase of Mersey Docks and Harbour Board no, 21 for
fcannibalisation?* It will be noted, from the appendix on locomotives
owned by the Middleton Railway Trusif are not c»t present on the line; this
is due to temporary shortage of space,

Full details of M.R.T. Motive Power appear in the illustrated
Locomotive Stock Book (Price 2/«)o

ALAPxMS AHD EXCURSIONS

!< '!> ^>l- '!« ^- -.- ̂ j?̂

Problems other than the motive power have faced the line from time to
time » Vandalism prevented the retention of our train fleet and would drive
many to despair Every pane of glass provides a target for the local
youth, every wooden key firewood for Mum., every pair of points a hazard-
ous plaything for Johnny and everything a headache for the Committee I
Just as a small minority create these difficulties, another group of local
youths are found working to create a presentable museum, both being the
result of half a million people close by the line c

Other situations have proved even more alarming - football supporters
leaving Parks ide Rugby Ground attempt to stop a moving train, stoning the
locomotive and crew.. The Gas Board lay mains beneath our line without
informing us ~ track sinks and locomotive is derailed „ Scrap metal
thieves steal a section of rail from Parkside Incline and the brass axle
bearings from stored wagons* Gypsies encamping near the line chop up
sleepers on our prefabricated track for firewood. .....And so we could
continue

Yet even the difficulties have their humorous side o Our G,W.R.
steam crane on one notable occasion, whilst working in the Balm Roa-d area,
went to take water from a supply in the Beza Street area. Thieves,

*The Middleton Railway Preservation Society was renamed the Middleton
Railxvay Trust on gaining National Trust Protection o



however, had removed the piping - nothing but"a large muddly puddle
remained, Realising that there was no time to return to Claytons yard,
the crew sought the help of residents in the nearby back-to-back terrace
houses whose.baths*, bowls and buckets were soon in action to prevent
what could have been a very nasty situation*, "Titfield ' Thunderbolt?? had
become a reality«

By the very practical nature of the work on which we are
engaged, we face an obligation to run trains in the worst of winter, when
the preliminary work involves digging to find the points' We have a
reputation to preserve„ Still serving the needs of industrial Leeds
after over 200 years *

The greatest threat of all came in 1965 when it seemed that we
might be nationalised * The new South Leeds Motorway, projected to run
over part of the former G.N.R. Beeston Jcto - Hunslet East line, had
caused B.R. to seek another rail outlet for coal* The use of our Balm
Road - Parksicle Junction section being the obvious alternative.

Since 19&1 the line has been protected by the National Trust
which lias effectively prevented great disturbances of our lino for other
purposes, but of nationalisation \̂ e never dreamt. The threat, however,
never materialised and in spite of opening a new seam of coal in 196?
the total closure of Broom Pit was planned for August 1968« The rail link
officially closed in July 196?? all traffic for the last few months leav-
ing by roado The final shift was worked on 16th "May 1968 and dismantling
of the colliery beganc The Trust-operated line remains independent.

Today the line relies on freight traffic, although, occasionally
passengers are carried in brake vans, an example of this being on. the
visit of ?Clun Castle7 to Leeds in September 196?* Passengers often
comment upon the local environment and cameras click at the sight of
washing hung across the street!

Great changes, however«, are at present transforming the grubby
back streets, semi-derelict allotments and piggeries, the pit spoil heaps
of our urban environment, as the new motorway prepares its giant strides
into LeedSo

Still today, however, you will see a shining steam locomotive labour-
ing up the incline with heavily laden wagons, a tribute to the work of
pioneer engineer, Matthew Murray, to the vision of Br* R. F. Youell and
his associates, and the labour of love of M.R.Tc members as the world's
oldest railway continues serving the needs of industrial Leeds, thus pre-
serving a tradition over two hundred years old..

For the benefit of Southerners not familiar with the life of South Leeds,
the provision of bathrooms in the older property.was not considered necess-
ary and a large tin bath in front of the fire in the living room sufficed!
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APPENDIX 1

Locomotive Stock

Salamanca
Prince Regent
Mar quis We Hingt on
Lord. Willington

Blenkinsop
Matthew Murray

2-1-2 rack loco built Fenton.3 Murray Sc Wood
ditto* (1812)
ditto, built 1o13 ®
ditto, built 1813 $

0-4-OST built Manning Wardle 220/1866 *
0-4-OST built Manning Wardle 28V1869 ™

B. V Gauge

Name

Blenkinsop
No. 2

Niger

Matthew
Murray No . 2

Gladstone

; -. ,» ~

Jean

Blenkinsop

Edith

Nostell No 2

Nostell No, 4

St. Johns
No * 1

Ht o Johns
"Mr* PIN U o £_

Works
Nui]iber

797

1262

— —
17.52

491

1175

1871

1^-82

1789

1763(?)

1 SO 7• J ~J (

Compa.iiy
Number

-

-
/-
o

5 9

LN3i!R A'-07

Type

0-6-OST

0-6-OST .

0-6-OST

0-4-OST

Q-6-OST

0-6-OST

0-6 -OT

0-6 -OST

0-6-OST .

0-6 -OST

0-4-OST

0-4-OST

n~4. O^Tw r W».J -L

Builder

Manning
. Wardle
Manning
War-die

. Manning
Wardle

Eud swell

Hudswell
Gateshead
N.E.R.

Hudswell

Huns let

Hudswell

Peckett

Pecfcett

Pn rVo-r-f--!. L; L- .LK. L; o I/

Date

1881

1892
___

1909

1898

1916

1897

195i,

1925

.1889

1929

1921

'] 090! /î C.

Notes

K, *

8, *

,̂ ±

*

8, ft

e
5, î

M

T\ -̂ivj ̂  ji

Z ^ ( 9.ij c, J-i. V ''

p

Q

P.1. U



Notes

* Locomotives built at the Round Foundry, Eolbeck, Leeds, and all
scrapped by 1835

e> Note * applieso Whilst it is almost certain that two locomotives were
supplied in 18139 there is still some doubt as to the authenticity of
the names stated: the fourth locomotive has been ascribed the name
'Lord Wellington9 by the historian Charles E. Lee et a!0 It was supplied
on ^fth August 18130 'Marquis Wellington5 delivered on 23rd November, 1813

0 This loco, originally built in 1869? was rebuilt to standard gauge in
1881

x Rebuilt in 1910 and scrapped by G. Cohen5s> November 1953°

6 Scrapped by 19^7*

/ Originally a NoE.R. 0-6-0, this was rebuilt as a 0-6-OST in 1912 and
scrapped by 19̂ 7

$ Scrapped by G. Cohen's, November 1953-

6 From Price9 Wills and Reeves in 1916, this loco was scrapped by Robinson
and Birdsell's during August, 1950°

@ From Apple by.. Frodingham Steel Company (No» 69) in 1950 o

5 Ex-L.N.B.R. No* 40? in June, 193?:; ex-Whitwood Chemical Company in 19̂ 3°,
ex-Brdggs Collieries Company., Saville Colliery, in October 19^7*
Dismantled by 19zf9*

M To Lofthouse Colliery in 1960

N From Charlosworth Colliery in 1953; thence to Lofthouse Colliery in
1960 (December) after repairs by Hunslet Engine Company0

Originally Shawcross No, 1 7 this loco moved from Shawcross Colliery to
Old Roundwood Colliery in 1952 and then to Nostell Colliery, also in
1952 o Now transferred away <,

Q From St. Johns Colliery in 1953-

R From St. Johns Colliery in 1952*

Z Locomotive rebuilt in 193̂  a^d again in 1951*

6 Inside cylinder locomotive o

APPENDIX 2

Locomotive Stock
Middle ton Railway Trust

JOHN ALCOCK (Hunslet 1697/32) First diesel by Hunslet and first to work
on a main line railway (acquired I960)



WIMXLE (Borrows 53/09) From Pilkington's of St. Helens. (Acquired
1?th October, 1961). 0-4-OWT.

.SWANSEA (Avonside 1̂ 69/09) Used at one time on the Swansea and Mumbles
Railway (Acquired 12th'April, 19(5,2) Q-6-OST.

21 (Avonside 1671/13) From Mersey Docks etna Harbour Board - identical
to 'Swansea* and. broken up to provide spare parts, 19&7/
(Acquired. 28th June, 1966) 0-6-OST.

MATTHEl-J MURRAY (Bagnall 2702/53) From 3.Cohen's, Stanningley., Leeds.
Typical industrial shunter with Price-Bagguley Valve gear%
(Acquired. January, 1966) 0-4--OST. Named 19680

LORD MAYOR (Hudswell Clarke ^f 02/93) From G.Cohen?s* Stannin-gley, Leeds.
Temp o r ar I ly s t o r e d an cl un de r go ing r e s t or a t i o n away f r om Mi d d 1 e t o n o
(Acquired latter end. of 196?) 0-4-OST.

HENRY DE LACY II (Hudswell Clarke 1309/1?) Oil burning steam loco
supplied to Kirkstall Forge in 191? and obtained from them direct,.
(Acquired 1st February, 1968) 0-4-OST.

JOHN COURAGE (Hunslct 1786/35) Small2\ h.p. diesel loco from the
Courage Breweries9 Alton, Hampshireo (Acquired. 9th March, 1968)
O-^f-OD.

5jj; (Sentinel 8839/33) Supplied originally to Geneva Yard, Darlington
where it spent all its working 'lifeo L.N.E.R. Class Y1, numbered
59v 8153, 68155 and finally 54 .in the Departmental List,
(Acquired 23rd September, 1;961 ) 0-4-0;'

13.10 (Gateshead, N.E.R. 38/1891) N.E.R. class H9 LNSR class Y?,
"" Owned by the fSteam Power Trust ?65? (Acquired 16th June, 1965)
0-4-OT

69621 (Stratford, G.Z.R. —/1923A) L.N.E.R. class N? originally
numbered 999E, later 7999, 9621 and finally 69621, Worked on the
ffi.E. suburban services from Liverpool Street. Owned, by the Chair-
man (Acquired Jan... , I9tz!-)o 0--6-HTo Temporarily stored away from
Middletono ^ ,

THE GREAT MARQUESS (Darlington, L.N.E.R, —/38) L.N.E.R. class
K̂ f originally numbered 3̂ 2, later 199zl- and 6199^-0 Now fully
restored in original livery Worked on the West Highland Line,
Owned by the President of the Trust, Lord. Garnock, (Acquired
April, 1963) 2~6-Oc Stored away from.Middle ton,

390QQQ2 (Fowler 3900002/̂ 5) Diminutive kO h.p. diosel mechanical
0-4-0 with three-speed gearbox- Obtained from Messrs, Cohens'',;
Stanningley, Leeds, on 9th December, 196?-



APPENDIX 3

Rolling Stock
Middle ton Railway Trust

Former L.N.E.R. Wickham 4-wheel petrol trolley

Cranes:-
Vintage 'Broad Gauge' G.¥.RU built prior to 18.80 (before earliest

records of Clyde Crane & Booth Co., who have loaned, the crane,
made by them, to the Trust.)«

Midland, Railway hand, crane (with associated match trucks) dating from
circa 1880,

Smiths (of Rodley, Leeds) Crane., circa 1930

Swansea and Mumbles Coach, No, 2

Former L-.M.S.R. Brake Van (latterly M158?60) built Derby 1926

Original Middleton Colliery Railway Wagon (early 20th century)

. . » o . and other miscellaneous items of wagons„

APPENDIX k

Traffic Carried
Middleton Railway Trust

Year Tone

1961
1962
1963
1964
1965
1966
1967

12468
6 764
6 624
8 822
9 781
5 700

CHOlOlOKJOOIOiOiOOOHDiCH^

Further information, general enquiries and member-
ship details regarding the Middleton Railway Trus t
m.ay be obtained by writing to the Membership Secre-
tary, J. Busholl, :"sq., 12, Trelawn Crescent,
Headingley, Leeds, 60
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